
                 
  Public Notice of Meeting 

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 
                                                 Tuesday, October 8, 2019 
                 Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 

            6:30 p.m. 
 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER-Matthew Ballou-Chair  

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS: This is the public’s opportunity to speak to items on the agenda.  In the 

interest of preserving individual privacy and due process rights, the Board requests that comments 
(including complaints) regarding individual employees or students be directed to the Superintendent 
in accord with the processes set forth in School Board Policies KE and KEB.    

  
III. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 

a. Reports  
i. Superintendent’s Report   

ii. Business Administrator’s Report  
iii. Principals’ Reports  
iv. Curriculum Coordinator’s Report   

b. Letters/Information 
i. Medicaid Information 

 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
V. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA  

a. Add Second and Third Public Comment 
 

VI. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 
a.  FY 2019-2020 
b.    FY 2020-2021 

i. Salaries & Benefits 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
VIII. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 
b. Protocol for Unauthorized Communication Devices 
c. Policies-3rd Readings 

i. BDE-Committees and Delegates 
ii. BEDH-Public Participation at Board Meetings 

 
IX. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

i. Budget Liaison  
ii. Negotiations 

 
X. RESIGNATIONS/APPOINTMENTS/LEAVES  

a. Resignations 
i. Joyce Fisk-School Board 

ii. Shirley Schneider-WLC Math Teacher   
 

XI. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION  
 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

XIII. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS   
 



 
 

XIV. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C)   

i. Negotiations 
 

XV. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 
 
 
 

 

INFORMATION:  Next School Board Meeting‐October 22, 6:30 PM at WLC‐Media Room 

 
The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, sexual orientation, 

gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice.  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUPERINTENDENT’ REPORT 

October 8, 2019 
 

On October 1, Beth Baker and I had a conference call with Attorney Gordon Graham. He has given 
us some homework to do in looking up the origins of the capital reserve funds for special education, 
buildings, equipment and roadways, as well as technology.  These may be sources of funds 
available to the district as we meet the challenges of the budget deficit.  We will be working with 
Attorney Graham in contacting the Division of Revenue Administration to see what, if anything, 
can be adjusted in our interactions with them.  At this time, he does not recommend that we go to 
a Special Town Meeting until we have a complete outlook on the entire situation.  Once we have 
collected the required information we will have another call with Attorney Graham and report back 
to the community. 
 
As recommended, I delivered letters to both Paul Branscombe, Wilton Town Manager and Russ 
Boland who works in the town office in Lyndeborough.  I sat with both of them to describe the 
situation in regard to the budget.  These were productive conversations and I made sure that I 
would keep them informed as we moved through the process of dealing with the budget.  Mr. 
Boland requested that I meet with the Select Board in Lyndeborough, I will be there on Wednesday 
October 23.  I offered to meet with the Select Board in Wilton, Mr. Branscombe indicated he would 
let me know if that was requested. 
 
Another step in the analysis of the 2019-20 budget is that the Business Administrator has asked all 
departments and buildings to look into their budget lines and encumber only those things that 
would be necessary to support the curriculum.  We will analyze this information to see where, if 
anywhere, there are funds that can be used to meet the deficit.  
 
The budget discussion for tonight is scheduled to be focused on salaries and benefits.  At the 
recommendation of our Business Administrator, this will be the only part of the budget that will 
be presented to both the Budget Committee and School Board.  The workload in the Business 
Office has been high and we have not had a chance to sit down as a leadership team to discuss the 
other parts of the operational budget.  That meeting will take place on Thursday October 3.  The 
full budget will be presented at the October 22 combined meeting of the Budget Committee and 
School Board. 
 
The process of looking to find a resource for “forensic accounting” outside of our own auditors 
will be a difficult one.  Before reaching out to contract with a forensic accountant to look over the 
past few years’ expenditures focusing on salaries and benefits, Beth Baker has done a deep look 
into the financial numbers.  She is presenting those number at this meeting.  If there is still a desire 
to contract with an outside resource, we will move in that direction. 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District 
School Administrative Unit #63 

192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082   
                       603-732-9227 
 

 Bryan K. Lane     Ned Pratt             Lizabeth Baker 
 Superintendent of Schools  Director of Student Support Services          Business Administrator 
  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
Per a parent request, I reached out to the two fifth grade teachers to inquire as to how they could 
be supported with the class sizes of 26 students.  The response was that they would like to think 
about it and get back to me.  In the meantime, we have looked into using other staff within the 
district to support instruction in these classes.  Due to scheduling conflicts, there was no consistent 
way to provide additional support.  In speaking with Mr. LaRoche, he has identified that during 
instruction for both English Language Arts and Math that students are consistently pulled out for 
supplementary instruction for other resources within the building including Title 1, Special 
Education and the WIN program.  While this is not a resolution to the size of the class, it does 
reduce the number of students in those classes to below 25 during those instructional periods. 
 
On Sunday October 27th at 5PM, the school board is scheduled to meet with the visiting team from 
the New Association of Schools and Colleges.  Please let me know if this is something that you 
can fit into your schedule. 
 
I was scheduled to attend the Kidder Law Conference on October 2, I determined it was more 
important to attend to matters within the district.  This is a valuable conference and I will endeavor 
to get the materials presented through the New Hampshire School Administrators Association. 
 
 
 





WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL 

57 SCHOOL ROAD 
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 

(603) 654-6123 
www.sau63.org/domain10 

 

 
       

 
Brian Bagley, Principal 
Sarah Edmunds, Assistant Principal 

 
Amanda J. Kovaliv, School Counseling Coordinator 

           Ashley Goggin, Middle School Counselor 
 
 

Principal Report 
October 8, 2019 

 
High School Robotics: 
This past week WLC received over $3000 in grants to start First Lego Robotics teams at both the middle 
and high school levels.  Thank you to Mr. Tyler, our new computer science teacher, for helping WLC access 
these grants and organize both teams!  
 
On Tuesday September 24th, the High School robotics team, WLC W4RR10R5 were lucky enough to have 
another local robotics veteran team visit us and show us their robot from last year and provide us with pointers 
and experienced advice. We are SO excited for our opportunity to create and program our very own robot.   
 
8th graders are working with brand new curriculum for this year and we are focusing entirely on coding 
and programming our very own Apps! Using MIT App Inventor and curriculum from Project Lead The Way 
(PLTW), students are learning the process of problem solving, perseverance, debugging, teamwork, 
communication, and the fun that can be had with programming!  We are very excited to be able to see our 
programs live in action with our tablet devices as the real-time application helps us see errors in our code and 
ways we can improve and grow with each challenge we face! 
 
The September 25th Early Release Day was beneficial for our teachers. Thirteen teachers joined the School 
Climate/Adult Leadership Team. Bill Preble led the discussion that centered on improving school culture and 
climate and selecting students to be part of the student leadership team. Julie Heon led the remaining staff 
members on a discussion concerning, “student led conferences,” in preparation for the NEASC visit the end of 
October.  Both workshops were well received.  
 
In preparation for NEASC’s visit on October 27, 28, 29, and 30 the visiting team’s chair and co-chair 
came to WLC for a pre-visit. This took place on September 30th. Discussion centered around where we are at 
concerning our self-reflection and the schedule for the four days they are here. The NEASC committee would 
like to meet with school board members and the superintendent on October 27 at the Hampton Inn 407 Amherst 
Street Nashua NH from 5:15- 6pm. 
 
AD Report Fall Season Update: 
Homecoming weekend was a huge success! Both varsity soccer teams earned victories over Concord Christian 
in close and hard fought games. The girls earned a 4-2 win, while the boys came away with a 3-2 victory. The 
weather was perfect and the Coop treated the fans to cheeseburgers, meatball subs, and chili in addition to the 
traditional Spankys fare.  
 
BV Soccer 
Head Coach: Kristin Schwab 
Record: 7-1 
# of players: 17 
Next home game: 10/16 vs Epping at 4pm 

 
 



 
GV Soccer 
Head Coach: Dan Ayotte 
Assistant Coach: Pete Simo 
Record: 6-2 
# of players: 18 
Next home game: 10/7 vs PCA at 5pm 
 
Boys MS Soccer 
Head Coach: Dan Nelson 
Assistant Coach: Nick Lord 
Record: 3-5 
# of players: 14 
Next home game: 10/4 vs Derryfield at 5pm 
 
Girls MS Soccer 
Head Coach: Malin Segal 
# of players: 13 
Record: 0-5-1 
Next home game: 10/4 vs Hampstead at 3:30pm 
  
 

 

 
 
 



  

FLORENCE	RIDEOUT	ELEMENTARY	SCHOOL	
18 TREMONT STREET 

WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 
(603) 732-9264 Main                  (603) 654-3490 Fax  

www.sau63.org 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Robert LaRoche, Principal                                                  Jo Anne Dufour, School Counselor   
                                 
 

Principal Report 
 

Day	–	to	–	Day	At LCS and FRES we have worked through the ground work of expectations 
and scheduling so that teachers are fully engaged with student learning. We have had a 
staff meeting in September, Open House, and a PTO meeting. One of the issues that we 
addressed at the beginning of the school year was dismissal at FRES. A change in location 
for the buses seems to have solved the problem of too many students exiting from the same 
side of the building and we are more efficient now.  
 
As is common, we have had some students move in to town and enrollment has gone up 
slightly. We are monitoring fifth grade as well as kindergarten. Fifth grade has 26 and 27 
students respectively. Kindergarten is at 14 students per classroom but we are also looking 
at support staff to ensure all needs are met.  
 
PTO/Community	The PTO has generously stepped up and funded the Artist in Residence 
program. This year a talented artist will work with students to create three mosaics that 
will be mounted on the front of the school. This is the same artist who created the mosaic 
inside FRES and we are looking forward to this artistic activity for the children. The PTO 
has also created a schedule of fund raising events such as skate night and Read A Thon.  
	
Playground	A big thank you to the maintenance staff at both LCS and FRES as we received 
mulch for both playgrounds. Our custodians repaired tears in the under fabric and spread 
the mulch to create a safer landing around the equipment such as swing sets.  
 
Curriculum/Instruction You will hear more from Dr. Heon, but our staff members were 
presented with a professional development experience around math instruction which was 
very interesting and useful. Teachers had many questions and suggestions as we move 
forward with this pilot math program. Our first assessments using STAR 360 were 
completed and the WIN team is presenting that data to classroom teachers during our 
newly created PLC time. Each classroom teacher will have thirty minutes once per week to 
work with a colleague on their goals and this will also serve as a time quarterly for review 
of the STAR 360 data. To create this time, specialists will take over morning meetings for 
classrooms Tuesday (grade 1), Wednesday (grades 2 & 3), and Thursday (grades 4 & 5). 
We are looking forward to the collaboration time made available through this plan. 
 
Budget	Teachers submitted their requests for material pertaining to the 2020 – 2021 
academic year and that information was passed on to the SAU.  



 The Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, handicap, veteran status, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or marital status in its administration of educational programs, activities or employment practice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Curriculum Report: October 8, 2019 

 
Professional Learning 

Early release day was very fruitful.  The LCS and FRES classroom teachers reviewed the 
features of the new Into Math resource and delved into additional features of the online 
component.  The specialists worked on writing new units.  The WLC teachers worked in 
committees about performance assessment and school climate.  The special services staff 
worked with Ned. 

I attended the monthly regional curriculum, instruction, and assessment meeting.  Topics 
included the new requirements for writing grants and various contacts at the NH 
Department of Education.  I attended the fall Universal Design for Learning workshop with 
our district team to continue to strengthen our knowledge and ideas for sharing with the 
rest of the staff.  I also attended a data workshop with four of our teachers to plan strategies 
for district data analysis.  Some staff members attended training by the NH DOE about the 
state test coming in the spring. 

Curriculum 

The LCS and FRES teachers are continuing to revise the math scope and sequence to align 
more closely with the state standards and mathematical practices.  The new math resource 
is helpful in this effort. 

The WLC teachers began their Professional Learning Committees around the topic of 
performance-based assessments.  They were provided with numerous resources and they 
will work to provide feedback about one another’s assessments.  The goal is to challenge 
students with high level thinking and a variety of options for demonstrating their learning. 

Assessment 

The fall STAR 360 assessment data is attached.  The kindergarten only takes the Early 
Literacy Assessment that is a pre-reading assessment.  Grade 1 students took the Early 
Literacy portion and those who scored high enough as readers also took the regular 
STAR 360 reading.  We will assess again at the end of the first quarter of the year. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
Julie Heon, Curriculum Coordinator 

 
Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School District-SAU #63 

District Curriculum Coordinator 

Julie S. Heon, Ed. D. 
192 Forest Road Lyndeborough, NH 03082 

603-732-9273 



























































































 

   

WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 1 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 2 

Tuesday, September 24, 2019 3 

Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative M/H School-Media Room 4 

     6:30 p.m. 5 
 6 
Present: Matt Ballou, Miriam Lemire, Carol LeBlanc, Jonathan Vanderhoof, Mark Legere, Alex LoVerme (6:33pm), 7 
Tiffany Cloutier-Cabral and John Clark  8 
 9 
Superintendent Bryan Lane, Director of Student Support Services Ned Pratt, Technology Director Mark Kline, and 10 
Clerk Kristina Fowler 11 
 12 

I. CALL TO ORDER  13 
Chairman Ballou called the meeting to order at 6:02pm. 14 
 15 

II. ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 16 
Request to add second and third public comment. Request to move up agenda item 8 (FY19-20 budget review) to the 17 
joint session. All agreed. 18 
 19 

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 20 
Chairman Ballou reviewed the public comment section of the agenda and reminded the public that comments should 21 
be kept to 3 minutes with a total of 15 minutes for public comment. 22 
 23 
Ms. Julie Lemire, Wilton, requested to have the woodchips on the playground added prior to school starting. She 24 
explained since last spring the woodchips have been sliding off the embankment and it is a safety hazard. The areas 25 
under the swings and monkey bars have deep “wells”.  She notes the swings were taken care of today but would like 26 
to ensure this happens prior to school starting in the future.  27 
 28 
Ms. Brianne Lavallee, Lyndeborough, spoke regarding agenda item 7 (5th grade discussion). She has reviewed the 29 
information the Superintendent provided regarding para-educators and teachers in the classroom and questioned how 30 
many minutes are the students getting and questioned if it is something legally we can do. Superintendent to respond 31 
later this evening when the topic is discussed. 32 

 33 
IV. BOARD CORRESPONDENCE 34 

a. Reports 35 
i. Superintendent’s Report 36 

Superintendent reports working with staff regarding finances; a presentation is scheduled for this evening. 37 
Essentially there is a budget freeze for 2019-2020. A letter will go out to the towns officials tomorrow regarding the 38 
financial situation and the DOE and DRA will be notified. We are working through the process and determining 39 
what is required and what is needed for purchases. He confirms woodchips are on their way. He is watching the 40 
bottom line and will give updates on a regular basis. At the last board meeting he made a statement he knew about 41 
retirements in April and wanted to clarify that he did know in February or March about possible areas in cost savings 42 
and one person did indicate in February they would be retiring. He adds, I did not speak accurately on that topic last 43 
meeting. He reports there was a bus incident on September 6 which received media attention. He spoke with the bus 44 
company and the parent multiple times. He had informed the Board of the options; the incident resolved itself.  The 45 
first grade t-shirt event was held and went over well. He sent a letter to Police Chief Olesen regarding an SRO 46 
(school resource officer). The Wilton Board is interested in looking at this and Chief Olesen will schedule a time for 47 
discussion.  It will be suggested he attend the next Strategic Planning Committee meeting on Oct. 15 if available.  48 
Ms. Baker confirms letting the towns know of the district’s financial issue was a recommendation by NHASBO. 49 
Superintendent confirms looking into creating warrant articles for deficit but is in the process of gathering 50 
information. 51 

ii. Director of Student Support Services Report 52 
Mr. Pratt provided an overview of his report which included spending time with staff and others in the building. 53 
Meeting schedules have been established with all student support staff in each building for the year and similar 54 
schedules are planned for para-educators and AB staff. In addition to those, quarterly meetings will be established for 55 
all student support services staff.  He spent the majority of the month on financial aspects, looking at the current 56 



 

   

fiscal year, planning for the next, communicating with the DOE, SPED aid and learning about the DOE.  Tomorrow 57 
the entire support staff will meet with MSB to discuss Medicaid submission; there have been new rules and 58 
temporary rules put into place but still a lack of clarity in terms of what will happen next. He will continue to analyze 59 
and be part of discussion on a state wide basis. Working toward electronic submissions; its more efficient, accurate 60 
and generates reimbursement faster. Meeting with individual staff and making sure necessary resources are there. Is 61 
appreciative of the webinars offered by the DOE and has attended several. He meets with his mentor Larry Elliot 62 
who will work with him during his first year; this has been very helpful. He briefly spoke regarding the changes in 63 
Medicaid reimbursement and noted the biggest issue is who can provide services for our students. He notes a real 64 
lack of clarity in terms of who can prescribe. Doctors and nurse practitioners are the main drivers here and there is a 65 
real concern due to much our Medicaid reimbursement comes from our licensed providers. Will continue with 66 
temporary rules; how long, it is unclear but will continue to be involved and will submit to gain the maximum 67 
reimbursement we can.  68 

iii. Director of Technology’s Report 69 
 Mr. Kline provided an overview of his report which included organizing equipment for recycling, obtaining 70 
passwords, account names, renewals for software that was overdue. Inventory was not complete and work was done 71 
to improve the process. There are bar code labels on almost everything; this will be complete next week. IVisions 72 
(financial software) is not something that he has had experience administering; normally there is training but this 73 
didn’t happen and new accounts needed to be created and changes needed to be made. He attended 4 days of 74 
PowerSchool University in Boston. The training was more on the advanced side and doesn’t include the day to day 75 
types of things. The server at the business office failed. Once he was able to “get in” he moved through the process 76 
of replacing an obsolete machine and software; also came up with a redundant solution which one backs up the other 77 
plus there is off site backup as well.  Fortunately, no data was lost. The 2 servers purchased are refurbished. He notes 78 
seeing more and more servers going away; most schools won’t even have them. In the past software was installed 79 
and now most is web based. Mobile device management system was added for IPads which allows for software 80 
installs to be done remotely. He voiced appreciation for the help of Mr. Andrew Stevens, (desk top support) getting 81 
the devices ready and helping in general. He had recommended purchasing 9th grade Chromebooks and thought he 82 
would also be able to replace some teacher laptops that are in need of replacement as well but this is not the case 83 
currently with the budget freeze. An external scan of the network was completed 1 ½ weeks ago as part of the 84 
technology audit; no results to date and interviews were completed.  Data was collected and an internal scan is yet to 85 
be done; the audit is progressing.  He confirmed the Chromebooks are about 4 years old and the replacement cycle is 86 
normally 3-4 years.  He confirmed the teacher laptops are capable of doing what is needed for curriculum but are 87 
pretty old and slow. As far as a priority for replacement he believes the student Chromebooks should take priority 88 
over the teacher laptops. A question was raised if there is anything that is inhibiting instruction and is there anything 89 
we may need to look at the capital reserve technology fund for. Superintendent will look into this. Mr. Kline reports 90 
the cost for 50 Chromebooks (Acer similar to what they have now) with a 3-year warranty and harder shell case is 91 
approximately $15,750.  Superintendent reports the technology budget is frozen at this time and teachers can 92 
implement the curriculum. The replacement cycle is something we need to consider but are holding “status quo” at 93 
this time. Ms. LeBlanc questioned how much was in the tech capital reserve.  This information is not available 94 
tonight; $18,000 was taken for the technology audit previously.    95 

b. Letters/Information 96 
i. Letter to Chief Olesen-SRO 97 

 Superintendent provided a copy of the letter to Chief Olesen which describes the possibilities. We will need to see if 98 
the town is willing and interested in a 260-day annual working calendar with about 70% of the time with the school 99 
district.  We would have to negotiate the split and the key things is the SRO is not an employee of the school district 100 
but of the police department. The town of Wilton, if agreed to, would hire a new officer and contract them out to us 101 
for a percentage of salary and benefits. A letter of agreement would be needed and things of that nature. He is glad 102 
the town is willing to look at this. 103 
  104 

V. 7:00PM JOINT BOARD & BUDGET COMMITTEE SESSION 105 
Present: Bill Ryan, Jennifer Bernet, Dennis Golding, Lisa Post, Kevin Boette, Jeff Jones, Adam Lavallee, Leslie 106 
Browne (7:00pm), and Christine Tiedemann (7:00pm) 107 
 108 
The meeting was called to order at 6:59pm by Bill Ryan, Vice Chairman. 109 
 110 

 FY2019-20 Budget Review 111 
The order was changed and started with the review of FY 2019-20. 112 



 

   

Ms. Baker provided a PowerPoint presentation which can be found with the minutes. She notes last year was a 113 
challenging year for this district. When she closed out FY19 and changed focus to FY20 she saw a shortfall and 114 
thought it was payroll encumbrances in the system; re-ran those and it was not. She has built a spread sheet of every 115 
district employee and benefits attached to that employee; cross referenced it with a paper contract and still saw a 116 
shortfall in salaries and benefits for this year. She went through the PowerPoint slide by slide including historical 117 
data noting the school budget is made up of 3 funds, grants, food service and the general fund. Slide 3 shows a 118 
decrease for FY19 which she believes is an anomaly. FY17 starts off ok (slide 4), spent $5,000 more than budgeted 119 
but was offset with benefits. Slide 5 shows FY18 salaries and benefits; budget increased $32,941 and increased 120 
$34,385 over actual prior year expenditures for salaries; projected increases (FY18) were $70,228. This was 1st year 121 
of 3-year teacher contract and NHRS rates increased significantly. Slide 6 looks at FY18 budget to actual and shows 122 
the spirit of the teacher contract; salaries offset by benefits and budget. Slide 7 is where things start to go awry; 123 
salary and benefits budget increased $155,175 between FY18 and FY19; she does not believe this was accurate 124 
budgeting. The budget increased $20,347 over actual prior year expenditures for salaries and FY19 projected 125 
increases were $160,745. Slide 8 shows FY19 budget vs. actual with $210,309 overspent in salaries and benefits.  126 
The error was carried forward in FY20 and now in year 3 of teachers’ contract and support staff contract; there is an 127 
issue.  Slide 9 compares budget FY19 to FY20 and indicates in salary and benefits the budget increased $191,855. 128 
The budget decreased $5,746 over actual prior year expenditures and FY20 projected increase was $191,855. NHRS 129 
rates increased. Slide 10 shows a shortfall of $305,663 and in her opinion it is a dynamic number subject to change. 130 
There are 5 open positions and this doesn’t include any supplemental pays and she is not sure of curriculum work 131 
etc. This is not a conservative number and will only go up from here in terms of shortfall. She looked at other 132 
remaining areas of the budget to cover the shortfall and is coming up with concerns. She reviewed the remainder of 133 
the slides. In effect we have been spending down our fund balance and special education capital reserve. The district 134 
is now in a place for no options for overspending the budget. This is a known shortfall in salary and benefits category 135 
of $306,000. It appears the remainder of the budget may be insufficient as well and the special education capital 136 
reserve is down to $46,000.  There is no unassigned fund balance available to absorb over-expenditures. 137 
Recommendations are to formally freeze the budget, notify all of the issue and consult a lawyer (resounding opinion 138 
of NH Association of School Business Officials NHASBO). There was discussion at NHASBO meeting that another 139 
district went through something similar in regard to transportation and they proposed an additional warrant article to 140 
obtain deficit appropriations. Looking forward to FY21; need to create a realistic budget based on actual 141 
expenditures that has sufficient contingencies built in, pursue RSA 198:4b which allows the district to retain 2.5% of 142 
current year’s net assessment for emergency expenditures, develop process to monitor budget, the School Board 143 
could say no budget transfers for a year and if Ms. Baker sees any negatives she can report this by a certain threshold 144 
and this would flush out any errors or spending that occurred after the budget was voted and build capital reserve 145 
funds back up.  She has asked the department heads when coming up with their budgets to look at actual spending for 146 
the last few years and nothing extra to see what that number looks like and start a side list of any extras that can be 147 
added later if approved.  A question was raised if Ms. Baker can tell what went wrong and why the numbers were so 148 
skewed that they were inaccurate. Ms. Baker replies all she can think of is that FY18 was an anomaly because 149 
teachers got raises but everyone was also switching to consumer driven health plan and the savings and benefits 150 
offset those increases and its possible in FY19 there were inaccurate salary figures that were used and not actual 151 
contractual amounts. She was asked, “and that continued from year to year”. She responded yes. There was much 152 
discussion regarding the deficit topic which included many questioning how this happened given that the budget is 153 
gone over in detail for several months, many had looked at it including both the School Board and Budget 154 
Committee and did not see numbers like this. It was noted there was back and forth last year about cutting money out 155 
but were cutting on things that were in addition to such as books. A question was raised how did the spread sheet and 156 
numbers get to the Budget Committee and how did this massive drop happen. A question was raised regarding why 157 
this was not picked up on during the audit. Superintendent confirmed the numbers that were presented to the School 158 
Board and Budget Committee came from the Business Administrator.  Concern was raised that accounting is an 159 
exact science and it should have come out. Ms. Baker responded that it did, you see the unassigned fund balance and 160 
that would be revealed in an audit.  A discussion was had regarding having additional oversight to ensure this doesn’t 161 
happen again. A suggestion was made to have the Budget Committee go through the numbers monthly. A question 162 
was raised if consideration has been given to outsource the billing and payroll as many companies don’t pay their 163 
own bills anymore.  Discussion was had regarding moving forward and being able to come up with a good budget 164 
and the need for real numbers. It was suggested to look at SPED tuition. A question was raised if there was a known 165 
problem (or employee) that was not followed through on or taken care of and got wrong numbers. A request was 166 
made to see the budget as it was presented to the voters with those numbers, where we started and where we are at; 167 
how did we get from point A to point B. It was noted it was not just bad numbers that other things happened 168 
especially the fund balance that the Board took action on; there needs to be an accounting and people need to know 169 



 

   

why it happened. A question was raised how much was spent on SPED capital reserve this year. Ms. Baker 170 
confirmed none this year; expense was from FY19 and there is $46,000 left in the account.  Superintendent 171 
confirmed items that were not budgeted in FY19 that should have been: kindergarten screenings ($1,500), summer 172 
custodial ($10,000), and an aba therapist.  Mr. Pratt reported SPED is in good shape; it’s a moving target (if one 173 
student moves in/has an IEP generated from another school district...). We try to plan as best as we can and sometime 174 
can bring a student back to offset costs but it is challenging every week.  He confirmed there are para-educator 175 
openings currently and Superintendent confirmed 3 positions are included in the $306,000 accounting but not the 176 
others. All positions are in SPED (4) except one. A request was made to research when we had 1st year of the 177 
WLCTA contract and how the savings of healthcare offset salary lines and was there some issue with that being 178 
carried forward.  Ms. Baker reports on slide 6 of the PowerPoint –actuals spent in FY18; we overspent salary and 179 
underspent benefits. She questions if the actual salaries were carried over properly into the FY19 budget.  A 180 
comment was made talking about the FY20-21 budget process seems a waste of time and it is questioned when will 181 
they see everything else. Superintendent responds that the process is moving forward and Ms. Baker has a spread 182 
sheet and lists and we are willing to provide it with benefits, positions and salary as contracted. As we move forward 183 
(FY20-21 budgeting) teacher salaries will remain flat and interest would be obtained through the CBA; para-184 
educators would get a 2.5% increase. Ms. Baker confirms the whole budget will have FY18, FY19 and FY20 and its 185 
tied out to an audit.  A concern was raised that they looked at these prior and has anything been changed, what is 186 
different.  Superintendent clarifies the actual numbers are real when you look at FY19 but if you look at (for 187 
example) ESY, $12,000 that was budgeted was not accurate; it was the projection in the budget of $12,000 that was 188 
not accurate.  We overspent ESY by $21,000, we know that and will let those numbers drive as we move forward. It 189 
is a projection because we don’t know that those are the people who will be there; if staff leaves they could be 190 
replaced with higher or lower associated costs. Superintendent confirms he did request for summer custodial costs to 191 
be in the budget he is unclear why it was not put in.   He is working on a spread sheet at the request of a board 192 
member that will delineate from last year’s budget to what we will predict is the necessary dollars; he will share that 193 
after it is reviewed by administration. Discussion was had regarding options at this point. Superintendent reports one 194 
option is to call a special town meeting. Discussion was had that this shouldn’t wait. Superintendent notes as we get 195 
through the rest of the analysis of the budget and have an accurate number collectively; everyone will have that 196 
number and the Board will make a decision in consultation with the Budget Committee. a concern was raised that the 197 
first meeting after the Board decided to eliminate $82,000 from the budget but really only eliminated $9,000 from 198 
expenses as places were cut that were known or told would have savings; this should be looked at. Another area 199 
suggested to look at is the school psychologist.  Ms. Baker suggests not allowing transfers and have her report 200 
accounts that are over which would flush it out and become transparent and make both she and the Superintendent 201 
accountable. She also suggests a lawyer be consulted. Superintendent confirmed if we cut or freeze expected services 202 
or promises that are not delivered we are opening ourselves up to being sued.  Superintendent confirmed that as far 203 
as he was able to look back, since he has been here, to the best of his knowledge summer custodial expense was not 204 
in the budget; there is a line for substitute custodial but the summer expense was not in there. Mr. Ryan disagrees 205 
that it was not budgeted prior. Discussion was had regarding fixing the problem going forward, something in the 206 
process broke down, an explanation is needed for FY18 and FY19. It was suggested to not wait to call a special 207 
meeting and this should be separate from next year’s budget and should be upfront about it. A question was raised is 208 
there something we can do with what we have left. Superintendent responds yes, we can freeze the budget and not do 209 
expenditures except safety related or required by contract.  The process right now is the principals or department 210 
heads look at every piece, give to the Superintendent and he determines if its required by law, for safety or SPED or 211 
contractually obligated.  Ms. Bernet spoke of some good news regarding the state budget and the legislature has 212 
come to a decision and it will be voted on tomorrow. If approved the towns will see an increase total over biennium. 213 
It would start this FY. She spoke of the Medicaid situation and read information that was provided by Kermit 214 
Williams. One of the Medicaid changes is limiting who can order or refer for services and excludes school 215 
psychologists and school counselors from providing billable services. Superintendent notes, Mr. Pratt has indicated 216 
we would anticipate a reduction of $20,000 and will put in a proposed $25,000 compared to the $60,000 we 217 
budgeted.  Ms. Baker will reach out to department heads to make sure they have fully encumbered funds for the rest 218 
of the year; it becomes a district wide push to get it all properly covered. Superintendent confirms it will be a priority 219 
for us to get that information for the next meeting and contact a lawyer to be sure we are proceeding appropriately. 220 
He confirms the dollars budgeted for legal fees will be even further behind. A discussion was had regarding the need 221 
to consider the students and things such as the score board lights that are out need to be serviced and to ensure they 222 
have the same experiences as all other students. A concern was raised regarding how department heads purchase 223 
things and if they get monthly reports. The process was discussed and it was confirmed they have access to reports.  224 
Mr. Lavallee requested to have electronic copies of every purchase order.  A request was made to move on to the rest 225 
of the meeting as everyone has had a chance to speak. 226 



 

   

i. FY2020-2021 Overview 227 
Superintendent provided an overview and reports there is an addition of a 2nd grade teacher, a modification of an 228 
existing position to have an ABA teacher, (not therapist) to help with the autism program. We are projecting 5% 229 
increase in health and will not have actual numbers until November which could be higher or lower.  Projecting 3% 230 
increase in dental as a place holder. Supply accounts will have a 2% increase across the board unless there is a 231 
specific reason and the department heads or principals need to explain why. There is the SRO piece, one facilities 232 
piece for a pulley system in the gym (create a multi-year plan for replacement).  Ms. Baker provided a PowerPoint 233 
presentation (can be found with the minutes) on enrollment and staffing.  Enrollment includes pre-k and kindergarten 234 
(totals-FY17 575, FY 18 538, FY19 553, FY20 current 565). Staffing slide show since FY17 the district is up 4 staff 235 
members (FY17 134, FY18 134, FY19 136, FY20 138.5 includes 5 vacancies to be filled). She reviews cost per 236 
pupil (FY15 $17,929, FY16 $18,680, FY17 $18,247, FY18 $20,275) which does not include the cost of 237 
transportation, SPED tuition or debt cost. Discussion was had regarding cost per pupil and staffing. A suggestion was 238 
made to include a slide that shows the cost per pupil with all expenditures included even though the DOE does not 239 
calculate it this way. Superintendent notes the cost per pupil increased when we started the RISE program. It was 240 
noted the RISE program saves in out of district costs which would be much more. Ms. Baker notes the overall 241 
conclusion is increasing staff is not a good thing when you have declining enrollment; most of the increases are from 242 
SPED and likely required.  It was noted that it would be nice to see RISE student enrollment; a concern was raised 243 
regarding attracting the most expensive students to the district.  Superintendent confirms other towns in our areas 244 
have similar programs such Milford, Mascenic, and Jaffrey, Rindge. A suggestion was made to perhaps put the 245 
pulley system on the CIP.  Responding to a question it was clarified the CIP is not a capital reserve account, it is a 246 
capital improvement plan with projected expenses. Discussion was had regarding the need for a 2nd grade teacher. 247 
Discussion was had regarding in March what will we be asking for. Superintendent clarifies that is unknown until the 248 
process is completed. He confirms at this time there are no known retirements. A request was made to know the 249 
items that were carried over from last year’s requests. Ms. Baker was thanked for her efforts and it was agreed 250 
finding this out now is far preferable than in February.  The next joint meeting is October 8; agenda items will be 251 
salary, benefits, SAU and transportation. There will be a FY19-20 discussion as well.  252 

VI. PUBIC COMMENTS 253 
Chairman Ballou reminded the group there is 15 minutes for public comment and to keep comments to 3 minutes. 254 
Mr. Charlie Post spoke regarding the deficit and notes he is stunned. He voiced appreciation for Ms. Baker and 255 
believes her work is accurate. He notes he has a degree in finance and could not make sense of it, all he can make out 256 
is the Superintendent brought inaccurate information and it continued to be faulty. He thinks the School Board owes 257 
the town an apology.  He notes people were going to be upset at $205,000 but now you are talking $500,000; this is 258 
almost 10% of the budget. He notes when this hits the press; it is embarrassing for you, the towns of Wilton and 259 
Lyndeborough and you put teachers and students at risk. This is really, really bad. He notes, I think the Budget 260 
Committee needs more power; the Superintendent refused to meet with them for the last couple of years. He adds 261 
had the Superintendent come they may have got more questions, instead to come here controlled by the School 262 
Board, I think you overreached and its time you give the Budget Committee the respect it deserves. 263 
 264 
Ms. Brianne Lavallee thanked Ms. Baker, as a member of the public we asked for real numbers and as we know now, 265 
the ones we were getting were wrong. As a member of the public she is disgusted and fearful for the children. She is 266 
fearing that what happened in Milford with a mass exodus, and is not the only one in the community who wants to 267 
know who is responsible because she is “done”.  She notes if services are not provided for her child, there will be 268 
legal action.  “Action needs to be taken and needs to be taken now!”  Regarding enrollment, she requests it all be 269 
broken down; we need to equal out on both sides, if its going down in HS and not elementary we should look to 270 
make those adjustments as well. 271 
 272 
Chair Browne recessed the Budget Committee to reconvene in the cafeteria at 8:38pm. 273 
 274 

VII. 5th GRADBUDE DISCUSSION 275 
Superintendent provided a document showing elementary enrollment numbers noting as of tomorrow the 2nd grade 276 
would have 38. Grades 6-11 are between 40-45 with the senior class having 29. He reviewed the district policy 277 
which strives to have no more than 25 per class; grade 5 has 2 sections of 26. In speaking with Principal LaRoche, he 278 
doesn’t feel at 6-8 weeks in; disrupting the classes is appropriate.  He notes regarding a public comment earlier in the 279 
evening, that the ABA’s are not assigned to teach other students but socialization is a piece of it and an important 280 
part of the IEP. The staff person would have some contact with other students and be able to help. An ABA/RBT or a 281 
para-educator is not a certified teacher and not to give instruction to students but he wanted it known that there is 282 
another person in the room.  He reviewed options for the 5th grade classes and is working with Ms. Loiselle, Media 283 



 

   

Generalist to see if she can assist with reading and writing; she is not certified in math and could work as an assistant 284 
to the classroom teacher. There is always the Board’s option to hire another teacher at a cost of approximately 285 
$60,000-$70,000 but that does not seem prudent at this time.  It was noted we have not had good experience hiring 286 
late and wondered if there has been thought given to having a MS teacher that perhaps could teach math. 287 
Superintendent is looking at a HS person and the certification would be “pretty much Ok” and if there were 5-6 288 
accelerated students it may be a good option. He is exploring options to support the program. Superintendent 289 
confirms regarding when we know the number of students in the 5th grade; he provided the numbers to the Board as 290 
he got them and doesn’t know who is showing up and not showing up but knows the first day of school.  Discussion 291 
was had regarding the policy indicating a recommended number and should class size be explored. It was noted that 292 
the Principal should keep an eye on it. There was no Board action on this. 293 
 294 

VIII. FY2019-2020 BUDGET REVIEW 295 
See above joint session. 296 

 297 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA 298 
There was no consent agenda to report. 299 

 300 

X. ACTION ITEMS 301 
a. Approve Minutes of Previous Meeting 302 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to approve the minutes of September 24, 303 
2019 as amended. 304 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 305 
 306 

b. Attorney Decision 307 
Superintendent questioned if the Board had direction for him in regard to the attorney information he had provided. 308 
There was discussion regarding putting this off to the next meeting although Mr. Vanderhoof noted he would like to 309 
make a change. A request was made to the Superintendent to provide a list of the attorneys at Soule, Leslie, Kidder. 310 
Superintendent reports each firm has individuals who are more attuned to special education or budget; each firm has 311 
people who have levels of proficiency in various areas. Ms. Baker notes NHASBO recommends Gordon Graham to 312 
handle deficit related matters (firm of Soule, Leslie, Kidder). Superintendent notes this is the firm we have been 313 
using. A question was raised if the Board does not take action would the Superintendent be contacting attorney 314 
Graham; Superintendent confirms we would. 315 
 316 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Vanderhoof and SECONDED by Mr. LoVerme to table this (attorney decision). * 317 
 318 
Discussion was had if it would be wise to use this attorney (Graham) and then possibly switch later. Superintendent 319 
confirms we have used multiple firms and there is no retainer fee or contract. We have used Soule, Leslie, Kidder 320 
and Drummond Woodsum (for SPED).  A question was raised if other firms have retainer fee’s or contracts. 321 
Superintendent responds, not to the best of my knowledge. 322 
 323 
*Voting: six ayes; two nays from Mr. Ballou and Ms. Lemire, motion carried. 324 
 325 

c. Policies-2nd Readings 326 
i. JICJ-Unauthorized Communication Devices 327 

Superintendent reviewed changes to this policy. This is the 2nd reading. 328 
 329 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Lemire and SECONDED by Mr. LoVerme to accept policy JICJ-Unauthorized 330 
Communication Devices. 331 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 332 
 333 
Superintendent confirms protocols will be available for the next meeting. 334 

ii. BEDH-Public Participation at Board Meetings 335 
Superintendent reviewed the changes to this policy. This is the 2nd reading. Discussion was had regarding combining 336 

1 and 2. A suggestion was made to strike the “other than the Superintendent”; this doesn’t change it but makes it 337 



 

   

more clear.  Superintendent to make amendments and send it out to everyone to be sure we have the changes correct. 338 

No action was taken; policy will return for a 3rd reading. 339 

iii. BDE-Committees and Delegates 340 
Superintendent reviewed the changes. It was suggested to add “not to exceed the number for a Board quorum” to the 341 
2nd page, last bullet and to add the Negotiations Committee charge. The questions at the bottom of the policy can be 342 
removed and this policy will return for a 3rd reading. 343 

iv. BDB-Board Officers 344 
Superintendent reviewed the changes; this is the 2nd reading. Discussion was had regarding rethinking this and if it 345 
would be more appropriate going to Strategic Planning or Policy Committee. Discussion was had if there was a vote 346 
to have a group email for the School Board or not and why it was brought up originally. Mr. Vanderhoof is not in 347 
favor of one individual having the authority to respond. It was noted a number of other school boards follow this 348 
practice. All members have individual email addresses posted on the website for anyone to email them. A question 349 
was raised if having this would create additional “traffic” for members on items they will see anyway.  350 
Superintendent reminded the group that the identified person responding to one of the group emails would be 351 
responding not to give an opinion and only to let the person know it was received and would be part of 352 
correspondence in the next agenda. He believes there was an issue with a timely response when this originally came 353 
up.  The Board can script the response if they wish.  It was also noted it was to inform the person it would be sent to 354 
the appropriate person to handle the matter such as teacher, principal, superintendent etc. It was noted if all emails 355 
are printed out it may be a lot of paper.   356 
 357 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to send policy BDB-Board Officers 358 
back to the Policy Committee. * 359 
 360 
Discussion was had if Board correspondence is the right place on the agenda for the emails and if it should say next 361 
agenda (timing).  Mr. LoVerme noted he would like an acknowledgement for the person that the email was received 362 
and that it will be brought to the Board. 363 
 364 
*Voting: seven ayes; one nay from Mr. Vanderhoof motion carried. 365 
 366 

XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS 367 
i. Facilities 368 

Mr. Legere is Chair of the Facilities Committee. He reports the committee went through items on the CIP, there is a 369 
sink hole in WLC parking lot that needs to be addressed, ceiling tiles have been taken care of but there was 370 
discussion about having a system to replace the tiles on the CIP. Superintendent added a future agenda item will be 371 
the size of the LCS nurse’s office as she has a concern. Ms. Lemire added that LED lighting for WLC was discussed. 372 
A question was raised if the Facilities Committee has a check list of items that needs to be done such as preventative 373 
maintenance etc. They do not however Ms. Baker or the Facilities Director may have. Superintendent will look at the 374 
Facilities Manual Mr. Button put together and in coordination with the Facilities Director we can bring something 375 
back to you to show the preventative maintenance pieces have been completed and become part of the annual 376 
process.  377 

ii. Strategic Planning 378 
Ms. Lemire reported items were prioritized last meeting. First are SRO and televising board meetings as they have a 379 
financial impact. The committee is hoping to meet with Chief Olesen at the next meeting and to obtain a better feel 380 
and get information from Ms. Edmunds on referrals and types of issues that may require an SRO.  The committee is 381 
reaching out to Mr. Clark to compile the data he has gathered regarding televising the Board meetings. She will 382 
email him directly.  383 
 384 
Mr. Vanderhoof noted moving forward the Budget Committee will meet prior to the joint sessions so that he can 385 
attend. He requests no votes be taken until he is present. 386 

iii. Negotiations 387 
This will be addressed in non-public session. 388 
  389 

XII. RESIGNATIONS / APPOINTMENTS / LEAVES 390 
There were none to report.  391 
    392 

XIII. BOARD BUDGET DISCUSSION 393 



 

   

Chairman Ballou commented he is glad there was a robust discussion and is thankful the agenda was adjusted.  394 
 395 
Mr. Legere voiced appreciate for Ms. Baker’s effort and knows this is not what she anticipated when she took this 396 
position. He notes some of the discussion may come off that she is the target but that is not the case. 397 
 398 
Mr. Vanderhoof spoke regarding the deficit information and questioned Ms. Baker as to what was the one thing that 399 
made her stop and say this didn’t look right and I have to look into it. Ms. Baker responded when she finished FY19 400 
and went into IVisions and saw a bunch of accounts over budget; you don’t want to see that and most are salary and 401 
benefits.  402 
  403 
Ms. LeBlanc spoke regarding the deficit and notes as painful as this all is to have it revealed and not know what the 404 
cause of it is, we will probably come out of it stronger if there were mistakes on our part. I think we will be a better 405 
Board and will have this situation clarified.  406 
 407 
Ms. Cloutier-Cabral spoke regarding Ms. Baker commented that the work she has done was instilling some 408 
confidence in allowing us to present these numbers and hopefully preventing us from making mistakes in the future.  409 
 410 

XIV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 411 
Chairman Ballou reviewed the public comment section of the agenda and reminded the public that comments should 412 
be kept to 3 minutes.  413 
 414 
Chair Leslie Browne informed the Board that the Budget Committee unanimously agreed that the School Board 415 
should hire a forensic accountant to start looking into this and not waiting any amount of time; it is not fair to tax 416 
payers and they need to have this information as soon as possible. It is not easy to stand in front of the public and not 417 
feel like we know what happened. They are hoping the Board will look into this. 418 
 419 
Ms. Brianne Lavallee spoke in regard to the 5th grade class and is appreciative for the suggestion from Ms. Lemire 420 
and knows there will not be any action on it. She is hoping when the Superintendent does his update at the next 421 
meeting she would like to hear what he decided on and hopes he speaks to the teachers to find out what they need.  422 
 423 
Ms. Jo Anne Dufour commented that she knows the Board is talking about striving for a particular number and 424 
questioned is they consider the needs of the students in those grades as there could be higher needs in certain grades. 425 
She was asked to clarify if she meant the number of students with specific needs or the grade level in general; the 426 
emotional needs based on the grade. Ms. Dufour replies both. 427 
 428 

XV. SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 429 
 Ms. Cloutier-Cabral commented that this was an informative meeting with a lot to think about and work to do. She 430 
voiced appreciation for everyone and is looking forward to the meetings to work on this. 431 
 432 
Ms. Lemire questioned when we will student testing scores be available. Superintendent responds the next meeting 433 
and he confirmed Principal Bagley will be back to talk about the MS the second week of Oct. 434 
 435 
Mr. Clark thanked members for being frank and although it is unpleasant he feels energized to hear everyone and 436 
wants to do good things for the district. 437 
 438 
Chairman Ballou commented that he thinks everyone understands the situation is willing to look back and see where 439 
the problem occurred. A lot of people had eyes on this and thinks there will be substantial changes on how we build 440 
budgets and relationships between boards.  441 
 442 
Mr. LoVerme commented this has been unpleasant; has known for a while and it is tearing him apart. It is 443 
embarrassing.  444 
 445 
Mr. Legere had questions regarding a forensic accountant; is it an audit and does Ms. Baker have any 446 
recommendations.  Superintendent responded we will bring that to you next meeting. Ms. Baker responded we can 447 
reach out to our auditors; they are a very good firm. She noted tonight was her attempt at that role; she needed to 448 
look back to see the fluctuations in the accounts.  Mr. Legere believes it is a good idea to bring in an outside 449 



 

   

“something”. Superintendent responds I think we need to figure out what that means and agrees timeliness is a good 450 
thing, we need to make sure they know what the Board is looking for.  451 
 452 
Mr. Clark questioned if there should be another meeting scheduled. Superintendent responded it will take some time 453 
and won’t come up with an answer tomorrow, it will take a few days at least.  The idea is to have it with the board 454 
packet.  He confirmed they can reach out to Attorney Graham and NHASBO. Ms. Baker will inform the audit firm of 455 
the situation.  456 
 457 
Ms. LeBlanc commented the bottom line is for everyone’s satisfaction we need to find out what brought it on so we 458 
don’t repeat it in the future. If we don’t know what went wrong, we can’t correct it.  459 
 460 
Mr. Vanderhoof commented he has spent a ton of time with this and he reports he is fine with a forensic accountant 461 
depending the cost. Budget is one thing but accounting is something else. We met on December 11 to discuss salary 462 
and benefits. Whatever the information you had at that time; you can’t tell me what teacher x salary was, it just 463 
seems simple. To have to expend money to get that answer he finds absurd. There is something odd here to get that 464 
number; you are looking at a half a million dollars. He doesn’t understand why it is such a hard calculation to get; 465 
these are past numbers; we are not trying to project numbers out.  Superintendent responds, I can do part of this 466 
work; I know there are factors that exist that call my abilities into questions as well. He has the information on a 467 
spread sheet and can cross reference it with budget numbers but doesn’t know that will satisfy the need of the Budget 468 
Committee.  Mr. Vanderhoof noted you are not looking at what the staff was, you are looking at what the staff is 469 
now. There are holes in the reasons behind it, the reasons are not clear; this is what it was, this is what you said it was 470 
budgeted. It doesn’t seem hard to obtain that. If we are going to ask the public for half a million dollars we need to 471 
have that information available.  472 
  473 

XVI. NON-PUBLIC SESSION RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) 474 
 A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Lemire to enter Non-Public Session to discuss 475 

negotiation matters RSA 91-A: 3 II (A) (C) at 9:49pm. 476 

Voting: all aye via roll call vote; motion carried unanimously. 477 
  478 
  RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 479 
The Board entered public session at 10:48pm.    480 
 481 
A MOTION was made to seal the non-public session minutes by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-482 
Cabral. 483 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 484 
 485 

XVII. ADJOURNMENT 486 
A MOTION was made by Mr. LoVerme and SECONDED by Ms. Cloutier-Cabral to adjourn the Board meeting at 487 
10:48pm. 488 
Voting: all aye; motion carried unanimously. 489 
 490 
Respectfully submitted, 491 
Kristina Fowler 492 
 493 



Budget Deficit Analysis

September 24, 2019

1



Historical Look at Budget

FY17  FY18  FY19  FY20 

Gen Fund $ 11,765,239.00  $ 12,031,972.00  $ 11,995,353.00  $ 12,193,232.00 

Food Service $     219,600.00  $     219,600.00  $     215,000.00  $     230,000.00 

Grants $     297,097.00  $     299,923.00  $     258,652.00  $     256,442.00 

Cap Reserve $                  ‐ $       55,000.00  $       60,000.00  $       60,000.00 

Total Budget $ 12,281,936.00  $ 12,606,495.00  $ 12,529,005.00  $ 12,739,674.00 

2



Historical Look at General Fund Budget

FY17  FY18  FY19  FY20 

Gen Fund $ 11,765,239.00  $ 12,031,972.00  $ 11,995,353.00  $ 12,193,232.00 

Increase (Decrease) $     266,733.00  $     (36,619.00) $     197,879.00 

Teacher CBA ‐ Projected $   36,891 $  120,000.00  $  140,000.00 

Para CBA ‐ Projected $      6,575.00  $    16,523.00 

Non‐CBA Salary Increases $   33,337 $    34,170.00  $    35,332.00 

Total Salary Increases ‐ Proj $   70,228 $  160,745.00  $  191,855.00 

3



Salaries & Benefits – Budget vs Actual 
– FY17

FY17 

Budget  Actual  Variance 

Salaries $   5,592,424.00  $   5,597,903.00  $       (5,479.00)

Benefits $   2,789,868.00  $   2,704,990.00  $       84,878.00 

Total $   8,382,292.00  $   8,302,893.00  $       79,399.00 

4



Salaries and Benefits Budget FY17 to 
FY18

FY17  FY18 

Budget ‐ Salaries $   5,592,424.00  $   5,632,288.00 

Budget ‐ Benefits $   2,789,868.00  $   2,782,945.00 

Budget ‐ Salaries and Benefits $   8,382,292.00  $   8,415,233.00 

Increase $       32,941.00 

• In the Salary and Benefit categories, the Budget increased 
$32,941.  

• The Budget increased $34,385 over actual prior year 
expenditures for salaries.  

• FY18 Projected increases were $70,228 ($36,891 for 
teachers and $33,337 for non‐CBA).

• NHRS Rates for Teachers increased from 15.65% to 17.36%
5



Salaries & Benefits – Budget vs Actual 
– FY18

FY18 

Budget  Actual  Variance 

Salaries $   5,632,288.00  $   5,824,124.00  $    (191,836.00)

Benefits $   2,782,945.00  $   2,618,066.00  $     164,879.00 

Total $   8,415,233.00  $   8,442,190.00  $     (26,957.00)

6



Salaries and Benefits Budget FY18 to 
FY19

FY18  FY19 

Budget ‐ Salaries $   5,632,288.00  $   5,844,471.00 

Budget ‐ Benefits $   2,782,945.00  $   2,725,937.00 

Budget ‐ Salaries and Benefits $   8,415,233.00  $   8,570,408.00 

Increase $     155,175.00 

Teacher CBA ‐ Projected $  120,000.00 

Para CBA ‐ Projected $      6,575.00 

Non‐CBA Salary Increases $    34,170.00 

Total Salary Increases ‐ Proj $  160,745.00 

• In the Salary and Benefit categories, the Budget increased 
$155,175.

• The Budget increased $ 20,347 over actual prior year expenditures 
for salaries.

• FY19 projected increases were $160,745.

7



Salaries & Benefits – Budget vs Actual 
– FY19

FY19 

Budget  Actual  Variance 

Salaries $   5,844,471.00  $   6,024,947.00  $    (180,476.00)

Benefits $   2,725,937.00  $   2,755,770.00  $     (29,833.00)

Total $   8,570,408.00  $   8,780,717.00  $    (210,309.00)

8



Salaries and Benefits Budget FY19 to 
FY20

FY19  FY20 

Budget ‐ Salaries $   5,844,471.00  $   6,019,201.00 

Budget ‐ Benefits $   2,725,937.00  $   2,744,317.00 

Budget ‐ Salaries and Benefits $   8,570,408.00  $   8,763,518.00 

Increase $     193,110.00 

Teacher CBA ‐ Projected $  120,000.00  $  140,000.00 

Para CBA ‐ Projected $      6,575.00  $    16,523.00 

Non‐CBA Salary Increases $    34,170.00  $    35,332.00 

Total Salary Increases ‐ Proj $  160,745.00  $  191,855.00 

In the Salary and Benefit categories the Budget increased 
$191,855.
The Budget decreased $5,746 over actual prior year 
expenditures.  
FY20 projected increases were $191,855.
NHRS Rates for Teachers increased from 17.36% to 17.80% 9



Salaries & Benefits – Budget vs 
Projected – FY20

Budget  Projected  Variance 

Salaries & Benefits $   8,711,110.36  $   9,016,774.03  $    (305,663.67)

10



Other Budget Categories – A Quick Look

LEGAL ‐ 2321, 2332.331 BUDGET ACTUAL

FY18 $        5,100.00  $        1,672.50 

FT19 $        4,500.00  $      15,931.70 

FY20 ‐ YTD $        4,000.00  $        6,697.00 

ESY PROGRAM ‐ 1212'S BUDGET ACTUAL

FY18 $      30,402.00  $      26,467.00 

FT19 $      20,488.00  $      27,946.00 

FY20 ‐ YTD $      16,250.00  $      33,115.00 

TECH ‐ PD & TRAVEL ‐ 2800'S,290/581 BUDGET ACTUAL

FY18 $        4,163.20  $           345.20 

FT19 $        3,585.00  $        3,373.99 

FY20 ‐ YTD $        1,000.00  $        3,770.88 

SPED TUITION ACS ‐ 560'S BUDGET ACTUAL

FY18 $    590,000.00  $    488,637.00 

FT19 $    565,512.00  $    644,852.00 

FY20  $    432,496.00 

Substitutes BUDGET ACTUAL

FY18 $      78,000.00  $    126,830.00 

FT19 $      80,000.00  $    137,795.00 

FY20  $      80,000.00 

11



What has the Effect Been?

• In effect, we’ve been increasing Budget by 
spending down Unassigned Fund Balance and 
Sped Capital Reserve Account.

FY17  FY18  FY19 

Unassigned Fund Balance $     433,692  $     128,036  $         6,727 

Use of Funds $ 305,656 $ 121,309

FY17 FY18  FY19 

Sped Capital Reserve  $ 213,704 $     215,965  $         45,975 

Use of Funds $ 0 $ 169,990

12



Where Are We At?

• There is a known shortfall in salary and benefit 
category of $306K.  This is a dynamic number and 
could be higher with other supplemental pays 
and salary adjustments.

• It appears that the remainder of the budget may 
be insufficient as well.

• There is no Unassigned Fund Balance available to 
absorb over‐expenditures.

• The Sped Capital reserve account is down to $46K  

13



Recommendations for FY20

• Formally Freeze FY20 Budget

• Notify:  Town of Wilton & Lyndeborough

• Notify:  DRA and DOE

• Consult Lawyer

• Review Process for Obtaining Deficit 
Appropriations

• In‐depth analysis of FY20 Budget, department 
by department

14



Recommendations for FY21

• Create a realistic FY21 budget based on actual 
historical expenditures that has sufficient 
contingencies built in

• Pursue RSA 198:4b, which would allow the 
District to retain 2.5% of the current year’s net 
assessment for emergency expenditures

• Develop a process to tightly monitor the budget –
e.g., no budget transfers, monthly reporting out 
to School Board on all accounts exceeding budget 
by $5K (YTD)

• Build capital reserve funds back up

15



FY21 Budget

Enrollment, Staffing & Cost Per Pupil 
Analysis

September 24, 2019

1



District Enrollment

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

Total 575 538 553 565

Increase (Decrease) 0 ‐37 15 12

‐100

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

En
ro
llm

e
n
t

Source:  NH DOE 10/1 Enrollment

2



Total Staff

134 134

136

138.5

FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20

3



FY18 to FY19 Staffing

• Addition of 2 staff members between FY18 
and FY19:

New Position:  ABA (S.J.)

New Position:  ABA (B.P.)

New Position:  Para (D.W.)

1 Position Elimination:  Business Office

4



FY19 to FY20 Staffing

• Addition of 2.5 staff members between FY19 
and FY20:

New Position:  Psychologist (previously 
contracted service) (M.S.)

New Position:  LPN/LNA (S.H.)

New .5 Position:  AP Coordinator (K.B.)

5



FY20 Vacancies – To Be Filled

• Para (vacated by C.B.)

• Alt Ed (vacated by L.V.)

• Para (vacated by A.L.)

• 1:1 Para (new student)

• New:  Life Skills Para

6



Cost per Pupil to Enrollment

FY15 FY16 FY17 FY18

CPP $17,929.56 $18,680.00 $18,247.04 $20,275.42

Enrollment 592 570 575 538

 $‐

 $5,000.00

 $10,000.00

 $15,000.00

 $20,000.00

 $25,000.00

C
P
P

7



Cost Per Pupil – Peer Districts

$20,275.42 

$18,408.09 
$17,816.13 

$19,454.28 

$17,265.98 

$14,938.66 
$14,044.86 

WLC Conval Henniker Hinsdale Hopkinton Jaffrey Rindge Mascenic

FY18 Cost Per Pupil

8



WILTON-LYNDEBOROUGH COOPERATIVE 
MIDDLE SCHOOL / HIGH SCHOOL 

57 SCHOOL ROAD 
WILTON, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03086 

(603) 654-6123 
www.sau63.org/domain10 

 

 
       

 
Brian Bagley, Principal 
Sarah Edmunds, Assistant Principal 

 
Amanda J. Kovaliv, School Counseling Coordinator 

           Ashley Goggin, Middle School Counselor 
 

 
 

 
 
Date: September 30, 2019 
 
To: Superintendent Lane  
 
From: Brian Bagley 
 
Subject: Cell Phone Protocol: 
 
Cell phones, smart watches, and other similar devices may be used only in designated areas at appropriate 
times.  Designated areas include the cafeteria, in the hallways during passing time, the counseling office, the 
nurse’s office and the main office. On occasion, cellphones and other electronic equipment may be used in the 
classroom for educational purposes.  Students should be sure to get permission before using a phone/device in 
class.  
 
First offense: Teacher confiscates and returns at the end of class. 
 
Second offense: Students must bring the device to the office.  The student may retrieve the phone at the end of 
the day. 
 
Third offense:  Students must bring the device to the office. Parent is called and must pick up the device. 
Four or more offenses: Disciplinary consequences at the discretion of the school administration. 
 
 
Refusal to adhere to these rules and policies may result in disciplinary consequences up to and including 
suspension from school. 
 
 
Students do not have the right to use electronic devices to audio/video record other students, staff, or visitors 
without the express permission of the person(s) in the recording.  Failure to comply with this rule will result in 
disciplinary action, up to and including suspension from school. 
 
 
Brian Bagley 
WLC 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 BDE - COMMITTEES AND DELEGATES 
 
 

Category R 

The Board may have the following standing committees as deemed necessary, with 
responsibilities as defined below: 

1. Policy Committee: To review and recommend new policies, amendments to policies or 
revisions of policies.  To create a schedule in which to review current policies in order to 
see if they meet current law and practice.   The Policy Committee will make 
recommendations, when appropriate, to the school board for their consideration. 

 

2. Facilities Committee: To oversee all matters pertaining to District facilities.  The 
Committee shall be responsible for the ongoing development of a Facilities plan to 
include 

 
 A one year plan due each year by October 1st that would include specifics for 

budget planning 
 A 3 year plan, revised on a yearly basis 
 A long term plan, revised on a yearly basis 

 
The Facilities Committee will include up to 2 Budget Committee members in its 
membership. 

 

The authority to make any and all final decisions regarding any Committee recommendations 
shall remain with the full Board. 

Standing and special committees and delegations shall be appointed by the Chairperson of the 
Board, from among the membership of the School Board and approved by vote of a majority of 
the Board. Committees will meet, on a regularly scheduled basis or as needed on problems 
pertaining to the committee’s specific scope of responsibility and will make recommendations 
for action by the full Board.  

When public participation is needed on School District Committees, public notice will be given 
after the second board meeting in March.  Members of the public will have 15 days to show their 
interest.    Those members of the public will be named on an annual basis or as needed to the 
designated committee by a vote of the full board in April of each school year. 

 

Additionally, each standing committee: 

 Will elect its own chair and vice chair.  

 Will create a public notice of a meeting, keep minutes and provide a written summary of 
meetings to the board. Unless otherwise noted, meetings are public and therefore 



 

 

members of the community, educators and budget committee members maybe invited as 
needed. 

 The superintendent, or their designee, shall be ex officio (non-voting) members of all 
standing committees. 
 

 Only School Board members will have voting rights. 

  Except as authorized by law or Board action, a standing committee may research issues 
and make recommendations for Board action, but in no circumstances may a committee 
take official action. All final decisions shall remain with the full Board. 

 The number of members on a standing committee (not to exceed the number for a board 
quorum) and/or the responsibilities of a standing committee may be modified at any time 
by a vote of the Board. 

The full Board reserves the right to disband or discontinue any standing committee at any time, 
by majority vote of the full Board. 

 
 
 
First Reading: August 24, 2011 
Second Reading: October 11, 2011 
Final Adoption: October 11, 2011 
Policy Amended: May 28, 2013 
Reviewed: September 10, 2019, September 24, 2019 
Revised: 
 
  
 



 

 

BEDH - PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT BOARD MEETINGS 
 
See Also KE, KEB 

The primary purpose of Wilton-Lyndeborough Cooperative School Board meetings is to conduct 
the business of the Board as it relates to school policies, programs and operations.  The Board 
encourages residents to attend Board meetings so that they may become acquainted with the 
operation and programs of the schools.  All official meetings of the Board shall be open to the 
press and public.  However, the Board reserves the right to meet and to adjourn or recess a 
meeting at any time.  The Board also reserves the right to enter non-public session at any time, in 
accordance with the provisions RSA 91-A:3. 

In order to assure that persons who wish to appear before the Board may be heard and, at the 
same time, it may conduct its meetings properly and efficiently, the Board adopts as policy the 
following procedures and rules pertaining to public participation at Board meetings: 

1. The Board will provide a maximum of fifteen (15) minutes to hear public comments at 
the beginning of each regular board meeting and an additional fifteen (15) minutes prior 
to any scheduled non-public session.  This may be extended by a majority vote of the 
board.  The board may include additional items for public comment beyond the agenda 
that are not in conflict with other policies including but not limited to policies KE and 
KEB.  The board chair will reserve the right to terminate inappropriate comments by the 
public. 

2. The Board will provide additional opportunities for public comments (15-minute 
maximum) after budget sessions and (15-minute maximum) prior to a nonpublic session 
or at the end of each meeting if none is scheduled.  These comments from the public are 
restricted to items discussed during that meeting. 

3. Individual speakers will be allotted three (3) minutes per person.  Speakers may not 
relinquish allotted time to another speaker.  For specific meetings and/or specific agenda 
items, the Board may at the outset of the public comment period increase the individual 
time limit for all speakers. 

4. The Chair will recognize speakers on a first come basis. 

5. In order to comply with RSA 91-A:2 II, speakers shall identify themselves clearly for the 
record. 

6. Except otherwise provided in this policy, members of the public may offer comments on 
agenda items or upon any other matter of public concern directly relating to school 
policies, programs and operations. In the interest of preserving individual privacy and 
due process rights, comments (including complaints) regarding individual students and 
employees, other than the Superintendent, be directed to the Superintendent in accord 
with the complaint /grievance resolution process set forth in School Board Policies BKE 
and/or KEB.  Complaints regarding the Superintendent will be directed to the Board 
Chair as described in School Board Policy KEB. 

7. Any comments that do not adhere to the above, or which disrupt the official business of 
the Board may be ruled out of order by the Chair.  Repeated disruption may result in the 



 

 

individual being asked to leave the meeting.  Obscene speech, comments of threatening, 
or other unprotected speech will not be tolerated.  

8. The Board Chair may terminate the speaker’s privilege of address if the speaker does not 
follow the above rules of order.  Repeated violations may result in the intervention of law 
enforcement, with potential for criminal charges. 

 

Persons appearing before the Board are reminded that members of the Board are without 
authority to act independently as individuals in official matters.  Thus, in most instances, any 
board response will be deferred pending future consideration by the full Board.  

 
With the aim of maintaining focus on the issues in discussion, it is desired that all speakers strive 
to adhere to ordinary norms of decorum and civility. 

Legal Reference: 
RSA 91-A:2, Meetings Open to Public 
RSA 91-A:3, Non-Public Sessions 
 
First Reading: September 14, 2010 
Second Reading: October 12, 2010 
Final Adoption: October 12, 2010 
Reviewed: September 10, 2019, September 24, 2019 
Revised: 






	WLC School Board Agenda 10.8.19
	Superintendent Report October 8, 2019
	October Board Report - Business Office
	WLC Principals Report
	Elem. October Principal Report LCS and FRES 1 updated
	Curr. Report_10.8.2019
	Curr. Report_10.8.2019
	Julie assessment scores 10..8.19

	Medicaid Information
	FY20 Salary Budget to Actual Analysis
	FY21 Proposed Budget - Salary & Benefits
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 9.24.19 includes powerpoints
	WLC School Board Draft Minutes 9.24.19
	Budget Deficit Analysis [Read-Only]
	Enrollment Staffing CPP Analysis [Read-Only]

	Cell Phone Memo
	BDE Draft 3 to board 10.8.19 BL
	BEDH  Draft 2 to board 10.8.19 BL
	J Fisk Resignation
	Schneider Retirement

